
 

1 | P a g e  
 

Agenda for the Goshen Common Council 
6:00 p.m., August 25, 2025 Regular Meeting 

Council Chamber, Police & Court Building, 111 East Jefferson Street, Goshen, IN 
 
 
Call to Order by Mayor Gina Leichty 
 
Pledge of Allegiance 
 
Roll Call:  
Linda Gerber (At-Large)  Phil Lederach (District 5)   Doug Nisley (District 2) 
Megan Peel (District 4) Donald Riegsecker (District 1) Matt Schrock (District 3) 
Council President Brett Weddell (At-Large) Youth Adviser Abril Reyes (Non-voting)  
 
Approval of Minutes: None currently available. 
 
Approval of Meeting Agenda 
 
1)  Presentation: City Fire Department Life Saving Awards to Michael Hamby, 
Hannah Estes, Jon Weishaupt, Jordan Hunter, Jerod Erb and Shane McKerchie 
 
2)  City financial report and budget update (Clerk-Treasurer’s Office) 
 
3)  Ordinance 5231, Amend Ordinance 3011 by Rezoning Real Estate Hereinafter Described 
from Commercial B-1 District to Residential R-3 District (for development of a two-story 
apartment building with 24 units, located at 1423 Lincolnway East) 
 
4)  Resolution 2025-12, Contract with the Indiana Department of Transportation for Street 
Sweeping Services 
 
5)  Ordinance 5229, An Ordinance Imposing a Municipal Wheel Tax and Municipal Vehicle 
Excise Tax and Creating the City of Goshen Municipal Wheel Tax Fund and the City of Goshen 
Municipal Surtax Fund 
 
Privilege of the Floor 
 
Elected Official Reports 
 
Adjournment 



 
 
TO:  Mayor Gina Leichty and the Goshen Common Council 

FROM:  Jeffery Weaver, Deputy Clerk-Treasurer 

RE:  Budget Reports for July 2025 

DATE:  August 25, 2025  

              

Attached for the Council’s review are financial reports summarizing the budget and cash balance 
performance for Civil City funds included in the 2025 budget, which was approved by the Council in 
October 2024. These reports are intended to provide a reasonable understanding of the City’s financial 
position. They are unaudited and may require some interpretation. 
 
Fund Balance Report 
This report provides the reconciled cash balance of the budgeted funds for July 31, 2025, illustrating the 
City’s liquidity position across all funds and demonstrating that each fund maintains a sufficient balance 
to support budgeted expenditures. 
 
Budget Report – Revenues 
This page summarizes revenue collections for each fund through July 31, 2025, showing progress toward 
projected revenue levels.  Remember that some funds receive the levy in two allotments in June and 
December (General, Debt Service, MVH, Cumulative Fire, Park & Recreation, Aviation, CCD, Cumulative 
Sewer)  
 
Budget Report – Expenditures 
This report displays expenditures incurred to date for each fund, allowing for an assessment of spending 
trends relative to annual appropriations, with an expected 42% of the budget remaining at this point in 
the year. 
 
Budget Report – Expenditures in the General Fund 
The final page breaks down the General Fund by department, providing a focused view of each 
department’s budget performance to date. 



8/20/2025 4:17:08 PM Page 1 of 1

Fund Balance Report
City of Goshen, IN As Of 07/31/2025

Fund Beginning Balance Total Revenues Total Expenses Ending Balance

1101 - GENERAL FUND 21,528,877.25 18,296,438.65 17,696,840.10 22,128,475.80

2201 - MVH FUND 3,790,842.61 2,253,029.85 2,288,804.03 3,755,068.43

2202 - LOCAL ROAD & STREET 1,554,031.95 395,923.71 4,535.00 1,945,420.66

2203 - MVH-RESTRICTED 2,106,390.49 388,077.33 0.00 2,494,467.82

2204 - PARKS AND RECREATION 4,698,294.14 2,154,474.60 1,584,954.60 5,267,814.14

2206 - AVIATION FUND 549,459.52 269,720.04 273,972.76 545,206.80

2209 - LIT - ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 7,303,587.03 1,616,436.95 1,522,792.57 7,397,231.41

2214 - PROBATION FUND 126,474.02 58,256.37 65,166.32 119,564.07

2226 - REDEVELOPMENT OPERATING 486,877.76 233,757.40 149,070.23 571,564.93

2228 - LAW ENFORCEMENT CONTINUE EDUCATION 61,043.92 32,683.70 9,045.11 84,682.51

2234 - UNSAFE BUILDING FUND 218,015.68 7,098.11 83,200.00 141,913.79

2236 - RAINY DAY FUND 2,654,516.59 0.00 0.00 2,654,516.59

2240 - LIT - PUBLIC SAFETY 2,437,452.30 1,609,506.56 1,862,148.92 2,184,809.94

2256 - OPIOID SETTLEMENT UNRESTR 101,168.19 0.00 0.00 101,168.19

2257 - OPIOID SETTLEMENT RESTR 253,200.26 0.00 156,399.74 96,800.52

2258 - TOWNSHIP FIRE SUPPORT 416,352.31 350,000.00 121,757.55 644,594.76

2500 - COURT FEES 39,739.66 33,936.47 7,753.64 65,922.49

2501 - RESIDENTIAL LEASE FEES 59,283.57 34,277.00 29,833.94 63,726.63

2503 - ELECTRIC UTILITY SALE 2,867,655.75 100,954.90 0.00 2,968,610.65

2504 - OLD LAW ENFORCEMENT CONTINUE ED 18,108.66 0.00 18,108.66 0.00

2505 - STORM WATER MANAGEMNT 2,387,177.63 374,742.34 1,567,051.86 1,194,868.11

2506 - ECON IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT 30,637.77 37,710.74 7,576.21 60,772.30

2508 - REDHAWK ACADEMY 14,757.86 35,000.00 18,767.52 30,990.34

3301 - DEBT SERVICE 65,169.99 210,055.72 372,150.00 -96,924.29

3311 - TIF BOND P & I PYMT FUND 571,219.28 1,038,283.75 816,718.75 792,784.28

3320 - BOND P&I EAST COLLEGE AVE 0.00 606,776.99 481,680.00 125,096.99

3321 - INDIANA AVE BOND P&I 0.00 73,326.25 58,000.00 15,326.25

3323 - CHERRY CREEK BOND P&I 1,475,173.57 30,811.55 90,821.25 1,415,163.87

3331 - TIF DEBT SERVICE RESERVE 217,393.75 0.00 217,393.75 0.00

3333 - DSR - CHERRY CREEK 282,220.21 1,062.24 0.00 283,282.45

4401 - CCI (CIGARETTE TAX) FUND 332,952.34 25,390.35 26,325.45 332,017.24

4402 - CUMULATIVE CAP DEVELOP 1,195,728.49 448,568.85 292,245.26 1,352,052.08

4425 - CCI FIRE STATION 601,395.79 298,462.20 241,701.16 658,156.83

4428 - CCI STORM SEWER FUND 3,290,057.69 335,396.66 80,378.34 3,545,076.01

4445 - TIF SOUTH EAST E.D. 22,706,136.70 4,575,452.14 3,285,403.42 23,996,185.42

4446 - TIF CONS RR/US 33/DT 9,914,318.15 2,142,329.48 2,118,625.70 9,938,021.93

4447 - TIF LIPPERT/DIERDORFF 770,577.43 135,549.23 388,438.11 517,688.55

4450 - TIF EAST COLL AVE 128,020.63 435,821.00 605,930.00 -42,088.37

4451 - TIF INDIANA AVENUE 32,443.02 53,337.02 58,000.00 27,780.04

4502 - ARP FISCAL RECOV FUND 5,557,302.92 0.00 859,806.96 4,697,495.96

4651 - CEMETERY CAPITAL IMPROV. 89,453.61 5,510.95 29,842.77 65,121.79

4660 - 2015 GOB PROCEEDS 849,472.25 0.00 0.00 849,472.25

4661 - 2021 GO BOND PROCEEDS 2,999,965.13 0.00 450,690.78 2,549,274.35

8801 - FIRE PENSION FUND 221,266.05 292,763.53 277,601.40 236,428.18

8802 - POLICE PENSION FUND 497,258.97 153,608.20 163,023.00 487,844.17

105,501,470.89 39,144,530.83 38,382,554.86 106,263,446.86Report Total:



8/20/2025 4:25:30 PM Page 1 of 3

Budget Report
City of Goshen, IN Group Summary

For Fiscal: 2025 Period Ending: 07/31/2025

Fiscal
Activity

Variance
Favorable

(Unfavorable)
Period

ActivityFun…

Current
Total Budget

Original
Total Budget

Percent
Remaining

Revenue

1101 - GENERAL FUND 18,296,438.651,302,001.6628,495,121.00 28,495,121.00 -10,198,682.35 35.79%

2201 - MVH FUND 2,253,029.85128,928.224,560,312.00 4,560,312.00 -2,307,282.15 50.59%

2202 - LOCAL ROAD & STREET 395,923.7160,569.59589,328.00 589,328.00 -193,404.29 32.82%

2203 - MVH-RESTRICTED 388,077.3366,137.491,366,292.00 1,366,292.00 -978,214.67 71.60%

2204 - PARKS AND RECREATION 2,154,474.6068,301.323,755,106.00 3,755,106.00 -1,600,631.40 42.63%

2206 - AVIATION FUND 269,720.0430,423.88407,787.00 407,787.00 -138,066.96 33.86%

2209 - LIT - ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 1,616,436.95218,700.502,637,406.00 2,637,406.00 -1,020,969.05 38.71%

2214 - PROBATION FUND 58,256.377,303.95125,000.00 125,000.00 -66,743.63 53.39%

2226 - REDEVELOPMENT OPERATING 233,757.401,463.6046,200.00 46,200.00 187,557.40 405.97%

2228 - LAW ENFORCEMENT CONTINUE EDUCATION 32,683.701,881.990.00 0.00 32,683.70 0.00%

2234 - UNSAFE BUILDING FUND 7,098.110.000.00 400,000.00 -392,901.89 98.23%

2236 - RAINY DAY FUND 0.000.000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00%

2240 - LIT - PUBLIC SAFETY 1,609,506.56218,404.082,642,849.00 2,642,849.00 -1,033,342.44 39.10%

2256 - OPIOID SETTLEMENT UNRESTR 0.000.0019,500.00 19,500.00 -19,500.00 100.00%

2257 - OPIOID SETTLEMENT RESTR 0.000.0045,600.00 45,600.00 -45,600.00 100.00%

2258 - TOWNSHIP FIRE SUPPORT 350,000.000.00350,000.00 350,000.00 0.00 0.00%

2500 - COURT FEES 33,936.474,570.2420,700.00 20,700.00 13,236.47 63.94%

2501 - RESIDENTIAL LEASE FEES 34,277.003,294.0064,430.00 64,430.00 -30,153.00 46.80%

2503 - ELECTRIC UTILITY SALE 100,954.9011,259.490.00 0.00 100,954.90 0.00%

2505 - STORM WATER MANAGEMNT 374,742.342,809.60607,827.00 607,827.00 -233,084.66 38.35%

2506 - ECON IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT 37,710.740.0065,500.00 65,500.00 -27,789.26 42.43%

2508 - REDHAWK ACADEMY 35,000.000.0046,500.00 46,500.00 -11,500.00 24.73%

3301 - DEBT SERVICE 210,055.720.00381,432.00 381,432.00 -171,376.28 44.93%

3311 - TIF BOND P & I PYMT FUND 1,038,283.750.00820,889.00 820,889.00 217,394.75 26.48%

3320 - BOND P&I EAST COLLEGE AVE 606,776.990.000.00 0.00 606,776.99 0.00%

3321 - INDIANA AVE BOND P&I 73,326.250.000.00 0.00 73,326.25 0.00%

3323 - CHERRY CREEK BOND P&I 30,811.550.000.00 0.00 30,811.55 0.00%

3333 - DSR - CHERRY CREEK 1,062.240.000.00 0.00 1,062.24 0.00%

4401 - CCI (CIGARETTE TAX) FUND 25,390.350.0057,813.00 57,813.00 -32,422.65 56.08%

4402 - CUMULATIVE CAP DEVELOP 448,568.850.00823,963.00 823,963.00 -375,394.15 45.56%

4425 - CCI FIRE STATION 298,462.200.00565,937.00 565,937.00 -267,474.80 47.26%

4428 - CCI STORM SEWER FUND 335,396.6614,237.96586,504.00 586,504.00 -251,107.34 42.81%

4445 - TIF SOUTH EAST E.D. 4,575,452.140.009,367,200.00 9,367,200.00 -4,791,747.86 51.15%

4446 - TIF CONS RR/US 33/DT 2,142,329.480.003,822,700.00 3,822,700.00 -1,680,370.52 43.96%

4447 - TIF LIPPERT/DIERDORFF 135,549.230.00261,350.00 261,350.00 -125,800.77 48.13%

4450 - TIF EAST COLL AVE 435,821.000.000.00 0.00 435,821.00 0.00%

4451 - TIF INDIANA AVENUE 53,337.020.000.00 0.00 53,337.02 0.00%

4502 - ARP FISCAL RECOV FUND 0.000.000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00%

4651 - CEMETERY CAPITAL IMPROV. 5,510.95214.7511,000.00 11,000.00 -5,489.05 49.90%

4661 - 2021 GO BOND PROCEEDS 0.000.000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00%

8801 - FIRE PENSION FUND 292,763.530.00460,000.00 460,000.00 -167,236.47 36.36%

8802 - POLICE PENSION FUND 153,608.2055.00350,000.00 350,000.00 -196,391.80 56.11%

39,144,530.832,140,557.3263,354,246.00 63,754,246.00 -24,609,715.17Revenue Total: 38.60%



Budget Report For Fiscal: 2025 Period Ending: 07/31/2025

8/20/2025 4:25:30 PM Page 2 of 3

Fiscal
Activity

Variance
Favorable

(Unfavorable)
Period

ActivityFun…

Current
Total Budget

Original
Total Budget

Percent
Remaining

Expense

1101 - GENERAL FUND 17,696,840.102,286,120.4433,944,900.00 34,264,096.33 16,567,256.23 48.35%

2201 - MVH FUND 2,288,804.03426,763.273,870,190.00 3,980,703.10 1,691,899.07 42.50%

2202 - LOCAL ROAD & STREET 4,535.000.001,000,000.00 1,539,147.00 1,534,612.00 99.71%

2203 - MVH-RESTRICTED 0.000.002,400,000.00 2,400,000.00 2,400,000.00 100.00%

2204 - PARKS AND RECREATION 1,584,954.60308,097.773,331,500.00 4,055,500.00 2,470,545.40 60.92%

2206 - AVIATION FUND 273,972.7648,828.78711,400.00 711,400.00 437,427.24 61.49%

2209 - LIT - ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 1,522,792.57803,157.874,325,000.00 7,100,223.28 5,577,430.71 78.55%

2214 - PROBATION FUND 65,166.328,771.66113,650.00 113,650.00 48,483.68 42.66%

2226 - REDEVELOPMENT OPERATING 149,070.2320,368.96274,550.00 274,550.00 125,479.77 45.70%

2228 - LAW ENFORCEMENT CONTINUE EDUCATION 9,045.111,033.9936,000.00 36,000.00 26,954.89 74.87%

2234 - UNSAFE BUILDING FUND 83,200.000.0085,000.00 551,000.00 467,800.00 84.90%

2236 - RAINY DAY FUND 0.000.000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00%

2240 - LIT - PUBLIC SAFETY 1,862,148.92291,015.783,049,000.00 3,377,347.50 1,515,198.58 44.86%

2257 - OPIOID SETTLEMENT RESTR 156,399.7491,422.000.00 0.00 -156,399.74 0.00%

2258 - TOWNSHIP FIRE SUPPORT 121,757.5555,367.60378,000.00 378,000.00 256,242.45 67.79%

2500 - COURT FEES 7,753.641,461.7654,700.00 54,700.00 46,946.36 85.83%

2501 - RESIDENTIAL LEASE FEES 29,833.944,356.3848,975.00 48,975.00 19,141.06 39.08%

2503 - ELECTRIC UTILITY SALE 0.000.000.00 400,000.00 400,000.00 100.00%

2504 - OLD LAW ENFORCEMENT CONTINUE ED 18,108.660.0018,109.00 18,109.00 0.34 0.00%

2505 - STORM WATER MANAGEMNT 1,567,051.8624,798.111,937,885.00 1,940,885.00 373,833.14 19.26%

2506 - ECON IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT 7,576.21498.0081,000.00 81,000.00 73,423.79 90.65%

2508 - REDHAWK ACADEMY 18,767.5211,945.9812,500.00 12,500.00 -6,267.52 -50.14%

3301 - DEBT SERVICE 372,150.00185,250.00373,275.00 373,275.00 1,125.00 0.30%

3311 - TIF BOND P & I PYMT FUND 816,718.750.00820,889.00 820,889.00 4,170.25 0.51%

3320 - BOND P&I EAST COLLEGE AVE 481,680.00481,680.000.00 0.00 -481,680.00 0.00%

3321 - INDIANA AVE BOND P&I 58,000.0058,000.000.00 0.00 -58,000.00 0.00%

3323 - CHERRY CREEK BOND P&I 90,821.250.000.00 0.00 -90,821.25 0.00%

3331 - TIF DEBT SERVICE RESERVE 217,393.750.000.00 217,393.75 0.00 0.00%

4401 - CCI (CIGARETTE TAX) FUND 26,325.4514,213.5480,000.00 80,000.00 53,674.55 67.09%

4402 - CUMULATIVE CAP DEVELOP 292,245.26145,932.811,022,000.00 1,361,227.95 1,068,982.69 78.53%

4425 - CCI FIRE STATION 241,701.1627,716.91375,000.00 417,598.95 175,897.79 42.12%

4428 - CCI STORM SEWER FUND 80,378.3433,686.252,700,000.00 2,700,000.00 2,619,621.66 97.02%

4445 - TIF SOUTH EAST E.D. 3,285,403.42920,111.1420,065,890.00 22,440,621.85 19,155,218.43 85.36%

4446 - TIF CONS RR/US 33/DT 2,118,625.70409,286.534,075,000.00 8,586,861.94 6,468,236.24 75.33%

4447 - TIF LIPPERT/DIERDORFF 388,438.110.000.00 388,438.11 0.00 0.00%

4450 - TIF EAST COLL AVE 605,930.001,250.000.00 0.00 -605,930.00 0.00%

4451 - TIF INDIANA AVENUE 58,000.000.000.00 0.00 -58,000.00 0.00%

4502 - ARP FISCAL RECOV FUND 859,806.96371,079.312,806,655.00 5,506,655.00 4,646,848.04 84.39%

4651 - CEMETERY CAPITAL IMPROV. 29,842.774,606.7745,800.00 45,800.00 15,957.23 34.84%

4660 - 2015 GOB PROCEEDS 0.000.00120,000.00 120,000.00 120,000.00 100.00%

4661 - 2021 GO BOND PROCEEDS 450,690.78428,331.253,149,049.00 3,149,049.00 2,698,358.22 85.69%

8801 - FIRE PENSION FUND 277,601.4043,961.67551,320.00 551,320.00 273,718.60 49.65%

8802 - POLICE PENSION FUND 163,023.0027,098.00410,050.00 410,050.00 247,027.00 60.24%

38,382,554.867,536,212.5392,267,287.00 108,506,966.76 70,124,411.90Expense Total: 64.63%

Report Surplus (Deficit): -5,395,655.21 761,975.97-28,913,041.00 -44,752,720.76 45,514,696.73 101.70%



8/20/2025 4:18:19 PM Page 1 of 2

Budget Report
City of Goshen, IN Group Summary

For Fiscal: 2025 Period Ending: 07/31/2025

Fiscal
Activity

Variance
Favorable

(Unfavorable)
Period

ActivityDepartmen…

Current
Total Budget

Original
Total Budget

Percent
Remaining

Fund: 1101 - GENERAL FUND

Expense

01 - COMMUNITY RELATIONS 59,472.706,227.61206,050.00 206,050.00 146,577.30 71.14%

02 - COUNCIL 81,313.1510,097.56149,770.00 149,770.00 68,456.85 45.71%

03 - MAYOR 308,841.2540,086.71621,380.00 621,380.00 312,538.75 50.30%

04 - CLERK-TREASURER 438,806.0450,407.99868,070.00 868,070.00 429,263.96 49.45%

05 - LEGAL 425,280.1166,083.57960,625.00 962,587.89 537,307.78 55.82%

06 - COURT 310,916.5037,461.13582,200.00 582,200.00 271,283.50 46.60%

07 - BOARD OF WORKS 3,031,639.97333,038.345,303,485.00 5,500,751.97 2,469,112.00 44.89%

08 - TECHNOLOGY 387,030.5865,076.05811,000.00 811,000.00 423,969.42 52.28%

09 - CEMETERY-GENERAL 283,041.1337,840.33483,070.00 483,070.00 200,028.87 41.41%

10 - ENGINEERING 555,669.7081,116.591,265,650.00 1,266,712.00 711,042.30 56.13%

11 - POLICE DEPARTMENT 5,030,483.34653,807.339,650,820.00 9,769,275.47 4,738,792.13 48.51%

12 - FIRE DEPARTMENT 4,668,876.46619,257.318,639,800.00 8,639,800.00 3,970,923.54 45.96%

15 - BUILDING DEPARTMENT 343,831.9646,932.81669,425.00 669,874.00 326,042.04 48.67%

16 - PLANNING DEPARTMENT 247,779.0634,625.12599,015.00 599,015.00 351,235.94 58.64%

18 - CENTRAL GARAGE 923,154.40114,935.471,953,130.00 1,953,130.00 1,029,975.60 52.73%

19 - BUILDINGS-GROUNDS 132,777.2522,183.01357,740.00 357,740.00 224,962.75 62.88%

46 - ENVIRONMENTAL RESILENCE 417,568.5261,674.36823,670.00 823,670.00 406,101.48 49.30%

90 - UNAPPROPRIATED 50,357.985,269.150.00 0.00 -50,357.98 0.00%

17,696,840.102,286,120.4433,944,900.00 34,264,096.33 16,567,256.23Expense Total: 48.35%

17,696,840.102,286,120.4433,944,900.00 34,264,096.33 16,567,256.23Fund: 1101 - GENERAL FUND Total: 48.35%

Report Total: 2,286,120.44 17,696,840.1033,944,900.00 34,264,096.33 16,567,256.23 48.35%



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 
 

TO:  Goshen Common Council 
 
FROM:  Rhonda L. Yoder, City Planner 
 
DATE:  August 25, 2025 
 
RE:  Ordinance 5231 
 
 
The Goshen Plan Commission met on August 19, 2025, in regular session and considered a request for a rezoning 
from Commercial B-1 District to Residential R-3 District, for development of a two-story apartment building with 
24 units, for the subject property generally located at 1423 Lincolnway East, with the following outcome: 
 

Forwarded to the Goshen Common Council with a favorable recommendation by a vote of 5-1. 
 
The recommendation is based on the following: 
1. The rezoning is consistent with the existing zoning and mixed land use in the area. 
2. The requirements of the R-3 District are able to be met. 
 
 
Prior to the Plan Commission meeting the Planning office received one phone call asking for more information. 
 
At the Plan Commission meeting, there were several questions about the landscaping and barriers planned along 
the south property line adjacent to Meadows of College Green, and several questions about the type of 
management planned for the apartments. 

Rhonda L. Yoder, AICP 
PLANNING & ZONING DEPARTMENT, CITY OF GOSHEN 
204 East Jefferson Street, Suite 4  Goshen, IN 46528-3405 
 
Phone (574) 537-3815  Fax (574) 533-8626  TDD (574) 534-3185   
rhondayoder@goshencity.com  www.goshenindiana.org   



 

Ordinance 5231  1 of 2 

Ordinance 5231 
 

Amend Ordinance 3011 by Rezoning Real Estate Hereinafter Described from Commercial B-1 District to 
Residential R-3 District 

 
WHEREAS DJSJ, LLC, Wightman, and Creative Design Solutions Inc., submitted an application on the 29th day 
of July 2025 to rezone the real estate hereinafter described from Commercial B-1 District to Residential R-3 
District, and the Goshen City Plan Commission did after proper legal notice conduct a hearing on said Petition as 
provided by the Law on the 19th day of August 2025, and recommended the adoption of this Ordinance by a vote 
of 5-1. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE be it ordained by the Common Council of the City of Goshen, Indiana, that: 
 
Property generally located on the west side of Lincolnway East, south of Shasta Drive, with a common address of 
1423 Lincolnway East, and more particularly described as follows: 
 
A part of the Southeast Quarter of Section 15, Township 36 North, Range 6 East, Elkhart Township, Elkhart 
County, Indiana, and more particularly described as follows: 
 
Commencing at a stone marking the Northeast corner of the Southeast Quarter of said Section 15; thence South 
89 degrees 51 minutes West, a distance of 804.5 feet along the North line of the Southeast Quarter of said Section 
15 to a point in the centerline of U.S. Highway Number 33; thence South 44 degrees 35 minutes East along the 
centerline of said Highway, a distance of 907.87 feet to the point of beginning of this description; thence 
continuing along said described bearing, a distance of 254.67 feet; thence South 0 degrees 42 minutes East along 
the East line of the Southeast Quarter of said Section 15, a distance of 360.92 feet; thence South 89 degrees 57 
minutes West, a distance of 370.11 feet; thence North 0 degrees 42 minutes West, a distance of 365.14 feet to the 
South line of a proposed roadway; thence North 89 degrees 52 minutes East, 12.3 feet; thence North 45 degrees 
25 minutes East, a distance of 251.95 feet to the aforementioned point of beginning. Containing 3.74 Acres, more 
or less. 
 
EXCEPTING THEREFROM: A part of the Southeast Quarter of Section 15, Township 36 North, Range 6 East, 
Elkhart Township, Elkhart County, Indiana, being more particularly described as follows: 
 
Commencing at a stone marking the Northeast corner of the Southeast Quarter of said Section 15; thence on an 
assumed bearing of South 89 degrees 54 minutes 18 seconds West along the North line of the Southeast Quarter 
of said Section 15, a distance of 804.50 feet to the centerline of U.S. Highway Number 33; thence South 44 
degrees 38 minutes 40 seconds East along the centerline of said right of way, a distance of 907.24 feet (recorded 
907.87 feet) to the most Northerly corner of a parcel of land conveyed to The Commodore Corporation as 
described and recorded in the Office of the Recorder of Elkhart County in Instrument Number 88 001729; thence 
South 45 degrees 22 minutes 5 seconds West along the Northwesterly line of said The Commodore Corporation 
parcel, a distance of 33 feet to the Southwesterly right of way line of said U.S. Highway Number 33, the point of 
beginning of this description; thence South 44 degrees 38 minutes 30 seconds East along the Southwesterly line of 
said right of way, a distance of 81.36 feet to a rebar with cap stamped Brads-Ko 0041; thence North 56 degrees 26 
minutes 47 seconds West, a distance of 83.12 feet to a rebar with cap stamped Brads-Ko 0041 on the North line of 
said The Commodore Corporation parcel; thence North 45 degrees 22 minutes 5 seconds East along the 
Northwesterly line of said The Commodore Corporation parcel, a distance of 17 feet to the point of beginning of 
this description. Containing 0.016 of an acre, more or less. 
 
All of the above shall be rezoned from Commercial B-1 District to Residential R-3 District, and the zone maps 
designated and referred to in Ordinance No. 3011 shall hereby be amended and ordered amended to reflect such 
classification and rezoning of said real estate. 
 



 

Ordinance 5231  2 of 2 

 
PASSED by the Common Council of the City of Goshen on       , 2025. 
 
        

Presiding Officer 
 
Attest: 
        
Richard R. Aguirre, Clerk-Treasurer 
 
 
PRESENTED to the Mayor of the City of Goshen on     , 2025 at ________ a.m./p.m. 
 
        

Richard R. Aguirre, Clerk-Treasurer 
 
 
APPROVED AND ADOPTED by the Mayor of the City of Goshen on      , 2025. 
 
        

Gina Leichty, Mayor 
 



 

 

To: Goshen City Plan Commission/Goshen Common Council 

From: Rhonda L. Yoder, Planning & Zoning Administrator 

Subject: 25-02R – Rezoning, 1423 Lincolnway East 
Commercial B-1 to Residential R-3 

Date: August 19, 2025 
 
ANALYSIS              
DJSJ, LLC, Wightman, and Creative Design Solutions Inc., request a rezoning from Commercial B-1 District to 
Residential R-3 District for development of a two-story apartment building with 24 units. The subject property is 
generally located at 1423 Lincolnway East and is zoned Commercial B-1 District. 
 
The subject property is an existing commercial office building that has historically been zoned neighborhood 
commercial. The area is a mix of low-intensity commercial uses and a range of residential land uses, along with a 
public park across the street. 
 
The purpose of the rezoning is to allow for multi-unit residential development, using the existing two-story 
building for 24 studio and one-bedroom units. Although there is not immediately adjacent R-3 zoning, there is R-
3 zoning to the west and north, and the area zoning is a mix of many districts. The subject property meets the R-3 
District requirements for minimum lot area, is well below maximum density, and all R-3 District developmental 
requirements are able to be met. 
 
The R-3 District requires partial landscaping adjacent to single unit and two unit residential land use, which 
applies along a portion of the east property line adjacent to 1501 Lincolnway East and along the south property 
line adjacent to 1401 and 1402 Ashton Court. A detailed landscape plan will be required as part of site plan 
review. 
 
The rezoning petition is not subject to site plan review, but a preliminary site plan has been provided, along with 
building elevations, which are included for informational purposes. Site plan review will occur through the City’s 
Technical Review process. Based on the preliminary site plan, R-3 District developmental requirements are able 
to be met. 
 
The proposed rezoning is consistent with the existing zoning and mixed land use in the area, and the requirements 
of the R-3 District are able to be met. 
 
RECOMMENDATION            
Staff recommends the Plan Commission forward a favorable recommendation to Goshen Common Council for 
the rezoning from Commercial B-1 District to Residential R-3 District, based upon the following:  
1. The rezoning is consistent with the existing zoning and mixed land use in the area. 
2. The requirements of the R-3 District are able to be met. 



KENTFIELD WAY EL
MH

ER
ST

CO
UR

T

U.S. 33

AUTEN
COURT

WI
NS

TE
D 

DR
IVE

SHASTA DRIVE
AS

HT
ON

 C
OU

RT
R-1

B-1

B-3
R-3

R-1A-1

PUD

PUD

PUD

PUD

1423 Lincolnway East

2023 Aerial
Printed July 29, 2025

´0 100 20050
Feet

The City of Goshen's Digital Data is the property of the City of Goshen and Elkhart County, Indiana. All graphic data supplied by the city and county 
has been derived from public records that are constantly undergoing change and is not warranted for content or accuracy.  The city and county 
do not guarantee the positional or thematic accuracy of the data.  The cartographic digital files are not a legal representation of any of the features 
depicted, and the city and county disclaim any sumption of the legal status they represent.  Any implied warranties, including warranties of
merchantability or fitness for a particular purpose, shall be expressly excluded.  The data represents an actual reproduction of data contained in the 
city's or county's computer files.  This data may be incomplete or inaccurate, and is subject to modifications and changes. City of Goshen and 
Elkhart County cannot be held liable for errors or omissions in the data.  The recipient's use and reliance upon such data is at the recipient's risk.  
By using this data, the recipient agrees to protect, hold harmless and indemnify the City of Goshen and Elkhart County and its employees and 
officers.  This indemnity covers reasonable attorney fees and all court costs associated with the defense of the city and county arising out of this
disclaimer.

Department of
Planning & Zoning

204 East Jefferson Street, Goshen, Indiana 46528
Phone: 574-534-3600     Fax: 574-533-8626

The City of Goshen
1 inch = 200 feet

Site Location



PUD

PUD

PUD PUD

PUD

PUD

PUD

PUD

PUDPUD

PUD

PUD

PUD

R-1

R-1

R-3

R-3

R-3 R-3

B-1

A-1

B-3

B-4

R-3

R-1

R-1

M-1

R-2

R-1

B-3

B-3

B-1

R-3

B-3

R-3

B-1

R-1

B-3

R-1 R-1

R-2

U.S. 33

16
TH

 S
TR

EE
T

COLLEGE AVENUE

WI
NS

TE
D 

 D
RI

VE

COUNTY ROAD 36

KENTFIELD  WAY

FAIRFIELD AVENUE

CO
UN

TY
 R

OA
D 

27

CANTON  DRIVE
GA

RL
AN

D 
 D

RI
VE

KE
YS

TO
NE

 DR
IVE

PARMLEY DRIVE

HAMPTON CIRCLE

PEMBROKE  CIRCLE

WOODSTONE COURT

AUTEN COURT

KENTFIELD  WAY

KEYSTONE DRIVE

1423 Lincolnway East - Area Zoning

Zoning Map & 2023 Aerial
Printed July 31, 2025

1 inch = 500 feet

The City of Goshen's Digital Data is the property of the City of Goshen and Elkhart County, Indiana. All graphic data supplied by the city and county
has been derived from public records that are constantly undergoing change and is not warranted for content or accuracy.  The city and county do
not guarantee the positional or thematic accuracy of the data.  The cartographic digital files are not a legal representation of any of the features
depicted, and the city and county disclaim any sumption of the legal status they represent.  Any implied warranties, including warranties of
merchantability or fitness for a particular purpose, shall be expressly excluded.  The data represents an actual reproduction of data contained in the
city's or county's computer files. This data may be incomplete or inaccurate, and is subject to modifications and changes. City of Goshen and Elkhart
County cannot be held liable for errors or omissions in the data.  The recipient's use and reliance upon such data is at the recipient's risk. By using
this data, the recipient agrees to protect, hold harmless and indemnify the City of Goshen and Elkhart County and its employees and officers.  This
indemnity covers reasonable attorney fees and all court costs associated with the defense of the city and county arising out of this disclaimer.

The City of Goshen
Department of

Planning & Zoning
204 East Jefferson Street, Goshen, Indiana 46528

Phone: 574-534-3600     Fax: 574-533-8626

´



HC

HC

S 89°57' W  370.11' (D)

802

802

803

803

804

804

804

805
805

804

80
3

80
5

805

804

80
4

804

80
5

80
5

80
5

805

80
5

804

80
5

805

80
5

80
6

799
800

801
802

803
804

80
3

80
4

79
779

879
980
080
180
280

3

798

799

800

801

802

803

804

79
7

79
8

79
9

80
0

80
1

80
2

80
3

80
4

80
5

805

80
0

800

80
1

801

80
2

802

80
3

803

80
4

80
4

80
5

805

798

799

801

802

803

804

804

804

803

804

803

802

803

803

804

803

804

803

804

804

804

805

805

804
804

805

80
4

805

804

80
4

805

805

± 133'

± 8
9'

1 of 1

DATE:
SCALE:

REVISIONS
P:\250848 DJSJ - Commadore - 1423 Lincolnway E Goshen - TOPO CP\B50
AutoCAD\250848 SP.dwg 1 OF 1 7/21/2025 10:41:56 AM

 

 

THE REPRODUCTION, COPYING OR OTHER
USE OF THIS DRAWING WITHOUT WRITTEN
CONSENT IS PROHIBITED.
© 2025 WIGHTMAN & ASSOCIATES, INC.

JOB No.

1402 MISHAWAKA AVE.
SOUTH BEND, IN. 46615

574.233.1841

www.gowightman.com

07/16/2025
1" = 30'

OWNER:
DJSJ, LLC
P.O. BOX 70
BRISTOL, IN 46507

PROJECT NAME:

REZONE PETITION
1423 LINCOLNWAY EAST
GOSHEN, INDIANA

SITE PLAN

 250848

 

S 44°35' E  254.67' (D)

S
 0

0°
42

' E
  3

60
.9

2'
 (D

)

EAST LINE
SOUTHEAST 1/4,
SECTION 15-36-6

N
 0

0°
42

1'
 W

  3
65

.1
4'

 (D
)

12.3' (D)
N 89°52' E

N 45
°2

5' 
E  2

51
.95

' (D
)

33
' (D

)

81.36' (D)

83.12' (D)

17
'(D

)

TRACT I
EXCEPTION

R/W LINE

CENTERLINE OF RIGHT OF WAY

U.S. HIGHW
AY 33

(R/W
 VARIES)

POINT OF BEGINNING
TRACT I

POINT OF BEGINNING
TRACT II

N 45
°2

5' 
E  2

39
.70

' (D
)

30' (D)

S 89°47'49" W 282' (D)

TRACT II
60' INGERSS-EGRESS EASEMENT

INSTRUMENT #2008-10705

(SHASTA DRIVE)

30'

1 inch =          ft.

0 30 45 60

30

SITE PLAN
IN PART OF THE SOUTHEAST QUARTER OF SECTION 15, TOWNSHIP 36 NORTH,

RANGE  6 EAST, TOWN OF GOSHEN, ELKHART TOWNSHIP, ELKHART COUNTY INDIANA

FOR REZONING PURPOSES ONLY

NOTES
1. PROJECT NAME:
2. PROPERTY ADDRESS: 1423 LINCOLNWAY EAST, GOSHEN, INDIANA
3. CURRENT USE: VACANT COMMERCIAL OFFICE BUILDING
4. PROPOSED USE: APARTMENT COMPLEX - EXPANDED
5. BUILDING IS CURRENTLY SERVED BY MUNICIPAL WATER AND SANITARY SEWER.

EXISTING ONE

STORY BUILDING

20.0'

(18) PARKING SPACES(13) PARKING SPACES

(14) PARKING SPACES

(11
) PARKING SPACES

EXISTING ASPHALT

PARKING LOT

ASPHALT
AREA TO
BE REMOVED

PARKING LOT
CONCRETE

(PUBLIC
 ACCESS-WAY)

MONUMENT
SIGN

MONUMENT
SIGN

EXISITNG
CONCRETE
SIDEWALK

FUTURE

STAIRWELL

STRUCTURE

FUTURE TWO STORY

BUILDING EXPANSION

±11,970 SF

HOUSE

SHED

TREES

EXISTING RETENTION
BASIN AREA

TOP OF BASIN

FUTURE SIDEWALK

LEGEND
= AIR CONDITIONER
= ELECTRIC TRANSFORMER
= FOUND IRON
= GROUND LIGHT
= LIGHT POLE W/ CONCRETE BASE
= SIGN
= UTILITY POLE

10
2.3

'

115.7'

97.1'

LAWN AREA

LAWN AREA

TREE LINE

ROADW
AY PAVEMENT

EXISTING DRAINAGE SW
ALE

ASPHALT
AREA TO
BE REMOVED

FUTURE

STAIRWELL

STRUCTURE

FUTURE PARKING LOT

56 PARKING SPACES



FIRST FLOOR

5' - 0"

BASEMENT

-5' - 0"

GRADE

0' - 0"

LANDING

2' - 4"

NEW ROOF

15' - 0"

FRONT ELEVATION



FIRST FLOOR

5' - 0"

BASEMENT

-5' - 0"

GRADE

0' - 0"

LANDING

2' - 4"

NEW ROOF

15' - 0"

BACK ELEVATION



GOSHEN COMMON COUNCIL 
 

RESOLUTION 2025-12 
 

Contract with the Indiana Department of Transportation 
for Street Sweeping Services 

 
 

WHEREAS the Indiana Department of Transportation desires to contract with the City of Goshen 
for the City to provide services to clean the dirt and debris from the curbed portions of State Road 119, 
State Road 15, and US Highway 33 that run through the Goshen corporate limits, hereinafter referred to as 
the "Sweeping Services." 
 

WHEREAS pursuant to Indiana Code § 36-1-7 et seq., a power that may be exercised by one 
governmental entity may be exercised by one entity on behalf of another entity if the entities enter into a 
written agreement. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Goshen Common Council approves the terms 
and conditions of the Contract with the Indiana Department of Transportation for Street Sweeping Services 
attached to and made a part of this resolution. 
 
 

PASSED by the Goshen Common Council on ________________________, 2025. 
 
 
             
       Gina M. Leichty, Presiding Officer 
ATTEST: 
 
 
       
Richard R. Aguirre, Clerk-Treasurer 
 

PRESENTED to the Mayor of the City of Goshen on _________________________, 2025, at 
________ a.m./p.m. 
 
 
             
       Richard R. Aguirre, Clerk-Treasurer 
 

APPROVED and ADOPTED on _________________________, 2025. 
 
 
             
       Gina M. Leichty, Mayor 
  



  



  



  



  



  



  



  



  



  



 



1 

ORDINANCE 5229 

An Ordinance Imposing a Municipal Wheel Tax and Municipal Vehicle Excise Tax 

and Creating the City of Goshen Municipal Wheel Tax Fund 

and the City of Goshen Municipal Surtax Fund 

WHEREAS, Indiana Code 6-3.5-11 (the “Wheel Tax Act”) authorizes the Common Council 

of the City of Goshen, Indiana (“Common Council”) to impose by ordinance an annual municipal 

wheel tax of not less than Five Dollars ($5.00) and not more than Forty Dollars ($40.00) on certain 

classes of vehicles registered within the City of Goshen; 

WHEREAS, I.C. 6-3.5-10 (the “Excise Tax Act”) authorizes the Common Council to impose 

by ordinance an annual municipal vehicle excise tax (the “Surtax”) at a specific amount of at least 

Seven and 50/100 Dollars ($7.50) and not more than Twenty-Five Dollars ($25.00) on certain 

vehicles registered in the City; 

WHEREAS, the Wheel Tax Act prohibits the Common Council from adopting an ordinance 

imposing a municipal wheel tax unless the Common Council concurrently adopts an ordinance 

under I.C. 6-3.5-10 to impose the annual municipal vehicle excise tax; 

WHEREAS, the Excise Tax Act prohibits the Common Council from adopting an ordinance 

imposing a municipal vehicle excise tax unless the Common Council concurrently adopts an 

ordinance under I.C. 6-3.5-11 to impose the annual municipal wheel tax; 

WHEREAS, City of Goshen seeks to concurrently adopt a municipal vehicle excise tax 

pursuant to I.C. 6-3.5-10 and a municipal wheel tax pursuant to I.C. 6-3.5-11; 

WHEREAS, the City of Goshen will not be eligible for Community Crossings Lane Mile 

Direct Distributions unless it adopts a municipal wheel tax and a municipal vehicle excise tax; 

WHEREAS, the City has developed a transportation asset management plan, approved by 

the Indiana Department of Transportation, that the City will send to the Indiana Bureau of Motor 

Vehicles and the Department of State Revenue, along with this ordinance, if adopted; and 

WHEREAS, the Common Council deems it necessary to impose the annual municipal 

vehicle excise tax and the annual municipal wheel tax so that it may generate revenue to 

adequately construct, reconstruct, repair, and maintain the streets and roads under the jurisdiction 

of the City. 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED, by the Common Council of the City of Goshen, 

Indiana, as follows: 

Section 1. Municipal Wheel Tax and Municipal Wheel Tax Fund. 

A. Definitions.  The definitions set forth in Indiana Code § 6-3.5-11-1, as amended, are 

incorporated herein by reference and shall apply throughout this Section 1. 



2 

B. Imposition and Rate of Municipal Wheel Tax.  Effective January 1, 2026, a municipal wheel 

tax (“Wheel Tax”) in the amount of Forty Dollars ($40.00) shall be imposed on each of the 

following classes of vehicles registered in the City of Goshen pursuant to I.C. 6-3.5-11, as 

amended: 

1. Buses. 

2. Recreational vehicles. 

3. Semitrailers. 

4. Trailers with a declared gross weight of more than nine thousand (9,000) pounds. 

5. Trucks and tractors with a declared gross weight or more than eleven thousand 

(11,000) pounds. 

6. Any other vehicle to which the Wheel Tax applies, pursuant to I.C. § 6-3.5-11-3, as 

amended.  

C. Exempt Vehicles.  A vehicle is exempt from the Wheel Tax if the vehicle is: 

1. owned by the State of Indiana; 

2. owned by a state agency of the State of Indiana; 

3. owned by a political subdivision of the State of Indiana; 

4. subject to the annual municipal vehicle excise tax imposed pursuant to I.C. 6-3.5-10; 

5. a bus owned and operated by a religious or non-profit youth organization and used 

to transport persons to religious services or for the benefit of its members; 

6.  a school bus; 

7.  a motor vehicle that is funeral equipment and that is used in the operation of funeral 

services as defined in I.C. § 25-15-2-17; or 

8. any other vehicle exempt from the Wheel Tax under I.C. § 6-3.5-11-4, as amended.  

D. Collection of Wheel Tax.  The Wheel Tax is due and shall be collected by the Indiana 

Bureau of Motor Vehicles each year at the time the vehicle is registered. 

E. City of Goshen Municipal Wheel Tax Fund.  The “City of Goshen Municipal Wheel Tax 

Fund” is hereby created and shall be a non-reverting fund.  The Clerk-Treasurer shall 

deposit the Wheel Tax revenues received in the City of Goshen Municipal Wheel Tax Fund. 

F. Use of Municipal Wheel Tax Fund.  The City may only use the Wheel Tax revenues in the 

Municipal Wheel Tax Fund for the following purposes: 



3 

1. to construct, reconstruct, repair, or maintain streets and roads that are under the 

jurisdiction of the City of Goshen; 

2. as a contribution to an authority established under I.C. § 36-7-23; 

3. for the City’s contribution to obtain a grant from the local road and bridge matching 

grant fund under I.C. 8-23-30; and 

4. any other use allowed under I.C. 6-3.5-11, as amended. 

G. Accounting of Municipal Wheel Tax Fund.  On or before October 1st of each year, the Clerk 

Treasurer shall provide the Mayor and the Common Council an estimate of the Wheel Tax 

revenues to be received by the City during the next calendar year.  The City shall include 

the estimated Wheel Tax revenues in the City’s budget estimate for the next calendar year. 

H. Transmittal of Ordinance.  The Common Council authorizes the Mayor or the Mayor’s 

designee to provide a copy of this Ordinance and a copy of a letter from the Department of 

Transportation approving the City of Goshen transportation asset management plan to the 

Indiana Department of Revenue and to the Indiana Bureau of Motor Vehicles, as required 

by I.C. § 6-3.5-11-8, as amended. 

Section 2. Municipal Vehicle Excise Tax and Municipal Surtax Fund. 

A. Definitions.  The definitions set forth in Indiana Code § 6-3.5-10-1, as amended, are 

incorporated herein by reference and shall apply throughout this Section 2. 

B. Imposition and Rate of Municipal Vehicle Excise Tax.  Effective January 1, 2026, a 

municipal vehicle excise tax (“Surtax”) in the amount of Twenty-five Dollars ($25.00) shall 

be imposed on each of the following classes of vehicles registered in the City of Goshen 

pursuant to I.C. 6-3.5-10, as amended: 

1. Passenger motor vehicles. 

2. Motorcycles. 

3. Motor driven cycles. 

4. Collector vehicles. 

5. Trailer vehicles with a declared gross weight of 9,000 pounds or less, except for a 

trailer described in I.C. 6-6-5-0.5(2). 

6. Trucks with a declared gross weight of 11,000 pounds or less. 

7. Mini-trucks. 

8. Military vehicles. 



4 

9. Any vehicle that is subject to the vehicle excise tax under I.C. 6-6-5, as amended. 

C. Collection of Surtax.  The Surtax is due and shall be collected by the Indiana Bureau of 

Motor Vehicles each year at the time a vehicle is registered. 

D. City of Goshen Municipal Surtax Fund.  The “City of Goshen Municipal Surtax Fund” is 

hereby created and shall be a non-reverting fund.  The Clerk-Treasurer shall deposit the 

Surtax revenues received in the City of Goshen Municipal Surtax Fund. 

E. Use of Municipal Surtax Fund.  The City may only use the Surtax revenues in the City of 

Goshen Municipal Surtax Fund for the following purposes: 

1. to construct, reconstruct, repair, or maintain streets and roads under the jurisdiction 

of the City of Goshen; 

2. for the City’s contribution to obtain a grant from the local road and bridge matching 

grant fund under I.C. 8-23-30; or 

3. any other uses allowed under I.C. 6-3.5-10, as amended. 

F. Accounting of Municipal Surtax Tax Fund.  On or before October 1st of each year, the Clerk 

Treasurer shall provide the Mayor and the Common Council an estimate of the Surtax 

revenues to be received by the City during the next calendar year.  The City shall include 

the estimated Surtax revenues in the City’s budget estimate for the next calendar year. 

G. Transmittal of Ordinance.  The Common Council authorizes the Mayor or the Mayor’s 

designee to provide a copy of this Ordinance and a copy of a letter from the Department of 

Transportation approving the City of Goshen transportation asset management plan to the 

Indiana Bureau of Motor Vehicles, as required by I.C. § 6-3.5-10-6, as amended. 

Section 3. Other Ordinances. 

All ordinances and parts of ordinances inconsistent or in conflict with the terms of this 

Ordinance are repealed to the extent of the inconsistency or conflict. 

Section 4. Severability. 

The provisions of this Ordinance are severable, and the invalidity of any phrase, clause, or 

part of this Ordinance shall not affect the validity or effectiveness of the remainder of the 

Ordinance. 

Section 5. Effective Date. 

This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its passage, approval, and 

adoption according to the laws of the State of Indiana. 

 



5 

PASSED by the Goshen Common Council on ____________________, 2025. 

 

             

       Gina M. Leichty, Presiding Officer 

ATTEST: 

 

       

Richard R. Aguirre, Clerk-Treasurer 

 

PRESENTED to the Mayor of the City of Goshen on ____________________, 2025, at the 

hour of _____: _____ ___. m. 

 

             

       Richard R. Aguirre, Clerk-Treasurer 

 

APPROVED and ADOPTED on ____________________, 2025. 

 

             

       Gina M. Leichty, Mayor 


	00-A-2025-8-25 Council-agenda
	2-2025-8-25 City Financial and Budget report
	Budget Report – Expenditures in the General Fund

	3-2025-8-25 ORD 5231 Amend Ordinance 3011
	4-2025-8-25 RES 2025-12_Contract with the INDOT for Street Sweeping Services
	5-2025-8-25 ORD 5229_ Imposing Mun Wheel Tax and Mun Vehicle Excise Tax and Creating Mun Wheel Tax Fund and Mun Surtax Fund (4)



